Digital Guide Manual

Digital Guide 2019 (Rev.1) Copyright © 2019. Dentium Co., Ltd. all rights reserved



Contents

I Overview	6
1 Key functions	6
2 Specifications	6
3 How to install	7
4 Notebook setting	11
4.1 Power setting	11
4.2 Graphic Card Settings (Based on NVidia Graphics Card)	13
5 Project Sharing	13
5.1 Creating a sharing folder on the Server PC	14
5.2 Setting the sharing folder path on the Client PC	15
6 Function Execution Procedure	17
6.1 Initial execution screen	17
6.2 Data Opening (DICOM, STL)	17
6.3 Tooth number selection	18
6.4 Data Matching	18
6.5 Drawing the neural tube (inferior alveolar nerve)	19
6.6 Crown simulation	19
6.7 Fixture simulation	20
6.8 Creating Surgical Guide	20
6.9 Report	21
II Screen Structure	21
III How to Operate	24
IV Description of detailed functions	25
1 Patient registration and project creation	25

1.1 Patient Registration and Creation	25
1.2 Project creation	26
1.3 File opening (DICOM / STL)	26
1.4 Export a project	
1.5 Import a project	
2 Data matching	
2.1 3-Point matching	
2.2 Automatic matching	
2.3 Manual matching	
2.4 Edentulous jaw matching	
3 Neural tube simulation	42
3.1 Drawing the arch curve	42
3.2 Drawing the neural tube	43
3.3 Reference axis changing function	46
4 Crown simulation	47
4.1 How to control the crown	48
4.2 Crown grouping	49
4.3 Crown bridge	50
4.4 Extraction function	53
5 Fixture simulation	54
5.1 Fixture simulation tool	54
5.2 Fixture selection and customizing	60
5.3 Sleeve selection and customizing	61
5.4 Anchor pin selection and customizing	62
6 Surgical guide area setting/creation	63
6.1 Sleeve setting	63

6.2 Guide area setting	
6.3 Guide attachment	70
6.4 Surgical guide output	72
6.5 Scan jig merge model extraction	73
7 Report	74
7.1 Report layout	75
8 E-mail transmission	76
8.1 E-mail transmission of Surgical Guide STL File	77
8.2 Request the Dentium Milling Center (rainbow Digital Center) to p	rint the surgical
guide model	77
9 Tools	81
9.1 Image Operating Tools	81
9.2 Data Matching Tool	83
9.3 Neural Tube Definition Tool	83
9.4 Crown design tool	
9.5 Implant planning tool	
9.6 Surgical Guide Creation Tool	85
9.7 Report Tool	
9.8 Changing the size of the sectional image window	
9.9 Layout change and initialization	
9.10 Undo / Redo	
9.11 Automatic Save	
9.12 Project management No.	
9.13 Model Viewport Rotation	
10 Configuration	
10.1 General	

10.2 User Setting	
10.3 Implant and Guide	
10.4 Clinic Info	
10.5 E-mail	
V FAQ	

Video Manual (English) :

http://www.clinicaldentium.com/shop_contents/myboard_read.htm?load_type=&page_idx=0&ta g_on=&h_search_c=0&h_search_v=&me_popup=&myboard_code=video22&page_limit=10&idx =54542

I Overview

Dentium's Digital Guide Software allows you to check various 2D and 3D images using CBCT's dental (oral jaw) DICOM data and model (stl) data and provides deliverables with which you may produce the surge aid device (surgical guide) based on the accurate fixture placement simulation and its result.

1 Key functions

- Maximized information acquisition by displaying 2D and 3D images on one screen.
- Provides CT / model data matching function.
- With intuitive operation, you can finish the prediction of fixture implant in the fastest way.
- You can set the guide generation area through simple area designation.
- You can easily check the information necessary for surgery through the report function.

2 Specifications

	Minimal specifications	Recommended specifications	
CPU	Intel Core i7-4770 3.4GHz or higher	Intel Core i7-4770 3.4GHz or higher	
RAM	8GB	16GB	
HDD	1TB	1ТВ	
VGA	NVIDIA GeForce GTX 960 or higher	NVIDIA GeForce GTX 1070 or higher	
Display	FULL HD 1920x1080 resolution		
OS	Windows 10 64bit		

* Automatic matching supports NVIDIA graphics card only and operates smoothly with

GTX1070 or higher graphic card.

* Windows 10 64bit version is recommended for smooth program operation.

3 How to install

3.1 Execute the installation file.

이름
🕼 Setup_DigitalGuide_v1.0.exe

3.2 Select the language to use for installation (Korean / English)

설치 언어	거 선택	×	설치 언어 선택	×
D	설치에 사용할 언어를 선택하십시오.		설치에 사용할 언어를 선택하십시오.	
	한국어	~	English	~
	확인	취소	확인 취소	<u>~</u>

3.3 Agree on the license agreement



3.4 Determine the installation position



3.5 Determine the radial position



3.6 Check the installation path and start the installation.

Dig Dig	italGuide S/W(64bit)v1.0 설치		-		×
설치 구	준비 완료 하의 컴퓨터에 DigitalGuide S/W을(를) 설치할 준비가 되	었습니다.			D
실	치를 계속하려면 "설치"를, 설정을 변경하거나 검토하려면	"뒤로"를 클릭하십	시오.		
-	설치 위치: C:₩Dentium₩DigitalGuide			^	
	시작 메뉴 풀더: DigitalGuide				
	<			>	
Korean –					
	< 뒤로	:(B) 설치(I)	취:	<u></u>

3.7 Press "Finish" button to complete installation



3.8 Insert the USB dongle to execute the program.



USB dongle insertion : You may execute the program



USB dongle is released : Error message turns up

(Impossible to shut down and execute the program)

4 Notebook setting

Digital Guide S/W is a program that shows and edits 3D and 2D images.

Due to the nature of the program, notebook users must make separate settings for smooth use of the program.

4.1 Power setting

a Connect the notebook power cord and use the notebook.

b Press the Search button of the window, write "power" and click "Set Power and Power Saving".

c Click "Set Additional Power"

= 🖻 🗋 🏟 - अंध 🗸	설정		- 🗆 X
☆ ^{가장 정확}	<u>َ</u>	전원 및 절전	
전원 및 절전 설정 시스템 설정	설정 검색 오	화면	에너지 및 배터리 사용 시간 절약 PC에서 휴식을 취할 때 화면이 절전
설정 실원 관리 옵션 편집	시스템 디스플레이	매터리 사용 시 나울 시간이 경과하면 표가 10분 ~ 전위 사용 시 다음 시간이 경과하며 고기	모드로 한왕되는 목도를 실망하세 요. PC 절전에 대한 자세한 내용 알아보 기
 · 전원 전실 시 와인을 고든 시간 전액 · 전원 사용 시 PC가 절전 모드로 전환되는 시간 변경 	♥ 소리♡ 알림 및 작업	15₩ V	관련 설정 추가 전원 설정
	 · 신승 지원 · 신원 및 절전 · 배티리 	절전 모드 베티리 사용 시 다음 시간이 경과하면 PC를 절전 상태로 전환 없음	질문이 있나요? 도움말 보기
	다. 에너디 다. 저장 공간 다. 태블릿 모드	전원 사용 시 다음 시간이 경과하면 PC를 절선 상태로 전환 없음	Windows를 개선하고 싶나요? 피드백 보내기
© £	화 멀티테스킹 코 PC에 화면 표시		
오전 <mark>월</mark> 태 우 태 《 제 등 날 음	X 공유 환경		

d Select "User Designated Power Management Option" and click "Change Select"

🍞 전원 옵션					-	×
← → ~ ↑ 🝞 > 제어판 >	하드웨어 및 소리 > 전원 옵션		~ Ŭ	제어판 검색		ρ
제어판 홈	전원 관리 옵션 선택 또는 사용자 지정					0
전원 단추 작동 설정	전원 관리 옵션은 컴퓨터에서 전원을 사용하는 방법을 관리하는 하드웨 그, 정전 도, 모음이나다, 정의 관리 유서에 대한 지방한 전날 보기.	어 및 시스템 설정(예: 디스플레이 밝				
덮개를 닫으면 수행되는 작업 선택	기, 절신 등) 모음입니다. <u>신원 관리 옵션에 대한 자세한 정보 보기</u> 배터리 수준에 표시된 전원 관리 옵션					
전원 관리 옵션 만들기 이스플레이를 끄는 시간 설정	⑦ 균형 조정(권장) 에너지 소비와 성능 사이의 균형을 자동으로 조정합니다.	설정 변경				
컴퓨터가 절전 모드로 전환되는 시간 변경	◉ 사용자 지정 전원 관리 옵션 1	설정 변경				

e Click "Change Advanced Power Management Option Setting"

리 > 전원 옵션 > 전원 관리 옵션 설정 편집			
변경할 전원 관리 옵션: 사	용자 지정 전원 관리 읍	옵션 1	
컴퓨터에서 사용할 절전 및 디스플	레이 설정을 선택하세요.		
	🚺 배터리 사용	🚿 전원 사용	
🔐 디스플레이 끄기:	10분 ~	15분 ~	
● 컴퓨터를 절전 모드로 설정:	해당 없음 🛛 🗸	해당 없음 🛛 🗸	
고급 전원 관리 옵션 설정 변경(C)			
		변경 내용 저장 취소	

f Click "Intel(R) graphic setting" ► "Intel(R) graphic power management" ► "Battery usage: Maximum performance" ► "Power Usage: Maximum Performance"

g Set "Processor power management" ▶ "Minimum processor state: 100%" ▶ "System cooling policy: Active" ▶ "Maximum processor state: 100%"

🥪 전원 옵션	?	×	🍃 전원 옵션 ? 🗙
			•
고급 설정			고급 설정
전원 관리 옵션을 선택한 다음 컴퓨터의 전원 관리 선택하여 고급 설정을 변경할 수 있습니다.	비 방법을	2	전원 관리 옵션을 선택한 다음 컴퓨터의 전원 관리 방법을 선택하여 고급 설정을 변경할 수 있습니다.
사용자 지정 전원 관리 옵션 1 [활성] 🛛 🗸			사용자 지정 전원 관리 옵션 1 [활성] 🛛 🗸
 말 바탕 화면 배경 설정 ☞ 무선 어댑터 설정 ☞ 절전 ⑪ USB 설정 □ 인텔(R) 그래픽 설정 □ 인텔(R) 그래픽 전원 관리 때 태티리 사용: 최대 성능 전원 사용: 최대 성능 전원 단추와 덮개 ♥ PCI Express ☞ 프로세서 전원 관리 			 ♥ PCI Express ▲ 프로세서 전원 관리 ● 최소 프로세서 상태 배터리 사용: 100% 전원 사용: 100% ● 시스템 냉각 정책 배터리 사용: 활성 전원 사용: 활성 ● 최대 프로세서 상태 배터리 사용: 100% ● 전원 사용: 100% ● 전원 사용: 100%
확인 취소	적용(A)	확인 취소 적용(A)

4.2 Graphic Card Settings (Based on NVidia Graphics Card)

- a Click Mouse Right Button in the main screen, and click ► NVIDIA control board
- b Click "3D Setting Management" ▶ "Program Setting" ▶ "Add"



c Select "Search" and select "DigitalGuide.exe" in the path where Digital Guide S/W has been installed.



5 Project Sharing

This is a function that allows you to use the same project on multiple client PCs by saving patient information and projects on a server PC that is commonly used.

This creates a sharing folder on the server PC and sets the path of the sharing folder on the Digital Guide of the client PC.

Projects processed on Client 1 PC can be loaded from Client 2 PC for additional work.

※ Patient image data (DICOM, STL, etc.) can also be saved in the corresponding sharing folder.

5.1 Creating a sharing folder on the Server PC

Create the folder, click the folder and click Mouse right button.

	~	🚜 네트워크 액세스
		공유할 사람을 선택하십시오.
		이르우 이런히 다우 (초가)를 클릭하거나 하상표를 클릭하여 사란은 차스니다
		이동물 않아진 가려 [카이]를 혼아이기의 의존프를 혼아이가 지금을 못입니다.
🧵 common_folder 숙성	×	~ 本7(A)
일반 공유 보안 이전 버전 사용자 지정	7	이름 사용 권한 수준 응 Evenue 위기(사기
네트이그 피아 미 프더 고이	1	동 woojinpark 소봉사
네드워그 파일 및 물이 중류		
common_tolder 공유됨		
네트워크 경로(N)-		
W#WJ-PC#Users#my#Desktep#common_folder		공유 문제가 발생하는 이유
7.8(5)		Alt unge
O II (J)m		SH(n) 11-2
고급 공유		고급 공유 ×
사용 권한을 설정하고, 공유를 만들고, 고급 공유 옵션을 설정합니 cl		
ч. 		☑ 선택한 폴더 공유(S)
🜍 고급 공유(D)		설정
		공유 이름(H):
암호 보호		common_folder
이 컴퓨터에 대해 사용자 계정과 암호가 없는 사람도 모든 사람과 공유되는 풀더에 액세스함 수 있습니다.		추가(A) 제거(R)
이 설정을 변경하려면 <u>네트워크 및 공유 센터</u> 를 사용하십시오.		▶ 동시 사용자의 수를 다음으로 제한(L): 20 🖵
		주석(O):
닫기 취소 적용(A)		
		권한(P) 캐싱(C)
		확인 취소 적용

How to set the sharing folder on the Serve PC

5.2 Setting the sharing folder path on the Client PC

			🗢 네트워크 위치 추가
[5] 2 월 - [41 PC 파일 컴퓨터 보기 ← → ∨ ↑			웹 사이트 위치를 지정하십시오. 바로 가기에 사용할 형 사이트 주소, FTP 사이트 또는 네트워크 위치를 입력하십시오.
★ 바로 가기 ● 바탕 화면 ★ ● 다운로드 ★ 10 유서 ★	▲ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	다운로드	인터넷 또는 네트워크 주소(A): ₩₩₩-pc₩common_folder / 및 01보기(R) (회제 보기
► 사진 # Dentium # _ 당전 200727 성부도 이위회	· 장치 및 드라이브 (4) 로칠 디스크 (C) 47568 중 24268 사용 가능		
 ▶카오북 받은 파일 ▲ OneDrive >> 내 PC ② 3D 개체 	 ✓ 네트워크 위치 (7) ▲ Cradicam-syn(syn-server) ₩riddown Windown twbae(smh) ₩riddown 	juchol(juchoi-pc)	다율(N) 취소
 다운로드 등영상 문서 바탕 화면 사진 	보기(V) 정렬 기준(O) 분류 방법(P) 새로 고칭(E)	3	Windows 보안 × 네트워크 자격 증명 입력
♪ 음악 및 로컬 디스크 (C:) ↓ Save (E:) ↓ Dentium (F:) ↓ CSShellPrintImage	불여넣기(P) 바로 가기 불여넣기(S) 삭제 취소(U) 네트워크 위치 추가(L)	kul+z	사육 중공을 합니다며 다음에 같은. 사용자 아들 암호 Enter the name and
DentiumRepository DigitalGuide	속성(R)		□ 내 자격 중 사용자 이름 5 확인 취소

How to add the folder path shared on the Client PC

D	IGITAL GUIDE	Name N/A Age N	/A			_ 🗆 ×
11						1. Add Patient
		Settings			×	
		General	General			
no		User Setting	About	Software Version : Digital Guide 2019		
		Implant and Guide		Software Build : 1.0.1 COPYRIGHT @2019 DENTIUM ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.		
		Clinic Info	User Interface Languages	English		
		Email	Project Sharing	Network sharing folder path		
				Browse		
		1	Update	🗹 Use Auto update		
			Default Save Path	Default Save folder path		
				Browse		
		Initialize	s	ave Cancel		
*						



Set the sharing path on the Client PC and check the shared project

6 Function Execution Procedure

6.1 Initial execution screen

Patient list > > >	1. Add P
Fearch Q +	
To	

Initial Execution Screen of Digital Guide S/W

6.2 Data Opening (DICOM, STL)

DI DI	IGITAL GUIDE Name mandi Age	≥ N/A		_ 0 ×
£	Load Data	Dicom		1. Add Patient
100 No.	mandi 5			
	Dentist Dr. Park			
	Description			
		Upper Jaw	Lower Jaw	
		X	×	
	Dicom Load $\frac{S^{V/2}}{Z_{V}S}$			
\$	Reset 5 Next >			

Select Data for producing the Surgical Guide

6.3 Tooth number selection



Select Tooth Number

6.4 Data Matching



3 Data matching using points



6.5 Drawing the neural tube (inferior alveolar nerve)

Drawing the neural tube

6.6 Crown simulation



Crown movement and rotation

6.7 Fixture simulation



Fixture movement and rotation

6.8 Creating Surgical Guide



Set the surgical guide area and create deliverables

6.9 Report



Report form - Provide information necessary for surgery such as fixture

II Screen Structure

Digital Guide consists of ① 2D image, ② 3D image, ③ Work stage, ④ Video tool collection, ⑤ Toolbar, and ⑥ Step bar, and provides an optimal and intuitive user environment.



Entire screen configuration

The screen configuration depends on the operation steps.

The cross-sectional image of the data registration stage consists of ① Axial, ② Sagittal, and ③ Coronal.



Configuration of matching Step Cross-Section

The cross-sectional image of the neural tube drawing stage is composed of ① Panorama, ② Axial, ③ Tangent, and ④ Cross.



Configuration of Neural Drawing Step Cross-Section

The fixture simulation step cross-sectional image consists of ① Panorama, ② Axial, ③ Fixture center cross and ④ tangent.



Configuration of Fixture Simulation Step Cross-Section



Fig. 13 Description of Axis

The operation step consists of total 6 steps, and the completed operation is marked with a check mark, and the current progress step is displayed as shown in the figure below. In connection with the operation step, ① the tool window is changed, and functions suitable for each step are displayed.



Operation step and corresponding tool bar

III How to Operate

Mouse: provides a consistent environment that allows you to quickly finish the operation in the 2D / 3D image area with the mouse operation only.

Left button			Wheel		Right button	
Click	Double click	Drag	Scroll	Drag	Click	Drag

		Function					Image
2D image		finish (Neural tube/Arch	Movement of fixture/neural tube/measurement	Cross- section move			Zoom- out/
	measurement/Notes	line)			Image	None	Zoom-in
	Start/Finish			Image	THOVE		
3D		None	None	Zoom-			Image
image				out/			turn
				Zoom-in			

Table 1. How to operate the mouse, apply to all areas

IV Description of detailed functions

1 Patient registration and project creation

1.1 Patient Registration and Creation



Patient registration

1.2 Project creation

D	IGITAL GUIDE	Name N/A	Age N/A	
Lt	Patient lis	t		🗋 mandi
	Search	۹ +	Bi D	irth Date escription
Ro	🚺 mandi			
				Edit Delete
				New Project +
			P	roject list
\$				

Project creation

1.3 File opening (DICOM / STL)

Import DICOM (oral jaw) and model (upper jaw, lower jaw) files.

D	IGITAL GUIDE Name mandi Age	N/A		_ 🗆 ×
£	Load Data	Dicom		1. Add Patient
	mandi 5			
	Dentist Dr. Park			
	Description			
		Upper Jaw	Lower Jaw	
		×	×	
	Dicom Load $\frac{2^{3/2}}{7_{13}^{5}}$			
			Л	
	Reset 3 Next >			
₽				

File opening

Click Dicom Load

button to pop up the window that selects the files and you

can select the desired file.

Due to the nature of DICOM data, there are several *.dcm files in one folder. Regardless of the file name and order, clicking one dcm file performs the open function.

Selecting the upper jaw or lower jaw (.stl, .obj) loads the model data.

이름 ^	수정한 날짜	유형	≡ ^
DCT0000.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0001.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0002.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0003.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0004.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0005.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0006.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0007.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0008.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0009.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0010.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0011.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0012.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0013.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0014.dcm	2018-06-29 오전 11:	DCM 파일	
DCT0015 dcm	2010 06 20 오저 11.	DCM TI-OI	

Select a random file regardless of *.dcm file selection and order

이름	수정한 날짜	유형	크기
🧵 slicedata	2018-08-23 오전 9:50	파일 폴더	
2018-05-08_00001-012-LowerJaw.stl	2018-06-13 오후 5:17	3D 개체	3,124KB
2018-05-08 00001-012-UpperJaw.stl	2018-06-13 오후 5:17	3D 개체	3,700KB

Select *.stl(or *.obj) file

When both data are loaded successfully, Next button ① is enabled. Press this button to go to the next step.

D DIG	iITAL GUIDE Name N/A	Age N/A	-	n ×
11	Load Data	Dicom	1. Add Pa	itient
no	Dentist Dr. Park	I DETAULT		
	Description	S SAFAAAA MAA		
		Upper Jaw		
		XXX		
	Dicom Load			
	Upper Jaw Load			
	Lower Jaw Load			
	Upper Marker Load			
	Lower 1			
\$	Reset 🕉 Next			

Data loaded successfully. Next button is enabled.



5



button will delete all data.



Data deleted and Reset button enabled



After importing DICOM data, you can use the DICOM Cropping function by pressing

button. Alternatively, it can be used by enabling the 'DICOM Cropping' option in User Setting.



DICOM Crop is enabled

When data loading has been completed, the tooth number selection screen for generating the surgical guide appears.

After selecting the tooth number, the Next button moves on to the next step.



Tooth Number Select Screen

Click the tooth number or crown as shown in the following figure to activate the crown and sleeve.



Tooth number select

Clicking the sleeve disenables the sleeve and only the crown is selected.

If only crown is selected, sleeves and fixtures will not appear in subsequent steps, nor will they appear when creating a surgical guide.

To find the tooth number that requires surgical guide drilling, select the crown + sleeve without fail.

		SelectTooth			
		Select Tooth Number 🛛 🕅 🗙			
		17 16 15 14 13 12 11 21 22 23 24 25 26 27			
Sleeve		47 46 45 44 43 42 41 31 32 33 34 35 36 37			
	43	Next $ ightarrow$			

Click the sleeve to release the tooth number

You can use the crown bridge function by pressing button on the top right. After enabling the button, click the mouse at the starting point of the bridge and move the mouse up at the last point to enable the bridge function.



Crown bridge creation

Pressing button releases selection of all bridge teeth.



Bridge teeth select release



1.4 Export a project

This is a function to save the project processed to the desired folder.

Click the project to export in the project list and click the export menu. If you enter the location and file name to save in the file explorer window, the data and setting files related to the project will be created as .zip files.

2021. 02. 26 12:50:07_A	Export Project	×
1_8	← → ▼ ↑ ▲ < 바탕 화 > 덴티움클리닉 ▼ ひ ,	.♡ 텐티움클리닉 검색
2021 02 26 12:50:01	구성 * 새 풀더	· · (2)
1 7		수정한 날짜
	■ 3D 개체 일치하는 항목	루이 없습니다.
2021. 02. 26 12:49:55_A	↓ 다운로드	
1_6 Export	·	
2021. 02. 2	·····································	
1 5	■ 사진	
-	♪ 음악	
2021. 02. 26 12:49:01	↓ 로셜 디스크 (C)	>
1_4	파일 이름(N) 리청수 20210226	
2021. 02. 26 12:48:23 A	파일 형식(T): (*.zip)	v
1.3		
	▲ 풀더 숨기기	저장(S) 취소

Export a project

1.5 Import a project

This is a function to import the project exported.

Click the Project import button and select the project .Zip file to import in the file explorer window. When the project loading has been completed, a new patient is added to the patient list.



2 Data matching

CBCT data (DICOM) is used to utilize the patient's anatomical information, and model data (.stl, .obj) is used to utilize the surface condition of the patient's oral structure. Using both data, it is possible to create an accurate surgical position and surgical guide.

2.1 3-Point matching

Three points are taken on each data, and the data is matched to one space based on the location of the points. When setting points, the sequence and position must be set at the same position of the two data for accurate data matching.



Set 3 points on the model data



Set 3 points on CT data



Data matching result

** When setting points, it is advantageous to increase the matching accuracy to set the distance of 3 points as far as possible.





Delete the previous points during setting the matching points

2.2 Automatic matching

If you click the Auto Matching button *k*, it automatically performs matching without taking 3-points.



- Limitations on the automatic matching function
- 1. In the case CT image and scan model data are different each other.
- 2. In the case the patient has an edentulous jaw or less than 3 teeth.
- 3. In the case the CT image has lots of noise or is cut (partial)
- 4. Using graphics other than those of NVIDIA do not support the automatic matching function.

×
2.3 Manual matching

You can increase the matching precision through manual fine adjustment by pressing the

Manual button Point Manual. The boundary line (yellow solid line) of the model data will be displayed on the 2D image. At this time, you can rotate this line by mouse click or rotation control.



Move the position by selecting the model boundary line (yellow solid line)

You can change the rotation center of the model data by clicking button, or Alt + Mouse Left button, or double clicking the Mouse left button.



Rotation center movement

The fine adjustment function can be used by using the Up/Down/Left/Right arrow keys on the keyboard.

Model data can be moved up (Up), down (Down), left (Left), and right (Right). Pressing the Ctrl key and pressing the Left button turns it to the left, and pressing the Right button turns it to the right.





Visualize the matching precision

Pressing T

button can adjust the Transfer Function value.







The density of the 3D image generated by DICOM depends on the value of the HU (Hounsfield Unit), and this density consists of skin, bones, etc., which are the reference for measuring the density. By applying a color to such reference value, the user can see the desired color and structure.

① Color : Click the box to change the color application range by specifying or moving the color.

② HU : Change the application range by changing the point of the line.

③ PRESET : Apply the specified color and range at once.

2.4 Edentulous jaw matching

This is a function to additionally load marker data when it is difficult to match between CTmodels due to no teeth. This function imports CT and STL data taken by biting a jig with a marker in the mouth and performs matching.



If load the model data of the upper and lower jaws, the button that imports the marker data will be enabled.



Loading the marker data of the lower jaw

How to re-extract CT Data for edentulous matching

- 1) Adjust Dicom transparency to extract CT Data using DICOM Slide
- 2) : RE-extract the file on Dicom window in the form of CT Data seen in the 3D screen.



Message box to re-create the CT surface



STL re-created on CT



Matching result using the marker data

Automatic matching does not operate for the edentulous jaw

Warning: If data is not matched, it is not possible to enter the stage of the surgical guide creation.

3 Neural tube simulation

3.1 Drawing the arch curve



: Create a new jaw arch curve (curve line)



Message to create a new jaw arch curve (curve line)



You can modify the curve by moving the orange color control point.

Readjustment of the curve line

3.2 Drawing the neural tube

After enabling the function by pressing the Add button, you can create a neural tube by clicking on it in the panoramic view. You can exit by pressing the button again or double-clicking the section.



Draw a neural tube

Even after exit, you can modify the neural tube path by moving the control point.



The path can be reset by clicking and moving the white control point with the mouse.

After selecting a neural tube from the 2D image, press the delete key on the keyboard or press

×

to delete the selected neural tube.



Neural tube delete message

Click button to delete the entire neural tube implanted.

Thickness of the neural tube can be changed by changing the number of the Combo Box



Changing the thickness of the neural tube



: Changing the Super Panorama Mode



Super Panorama Mode

3.3 Reference axis changing function

A function to change the reference axis to view the cross section of the CT image as the default value in the direction desired by the user.



- A dot is created on the blue line representing the axial cross section in the 3D screen of the Scan Alignment step and Nerve Definition step. You can click and drag the point to set the desired reference axis.
- Blue dot can be rotated horizontally, and green dot can be rotated vertically.
- When setting the reference axis, not only the basic position of the section but also the basic angle of the panorama is changed.

4 Crown simulation



Anatomy Design Start Screen

Upon initial entry, the crown follows the mouse point. When you click the mouse on the scan model, the crown will be located at that location. This simulation controls position and rotation of the crown and scale.



Crown arrangement screen

4.1 How to control the crown

- 1) Movement : Click the crown and move the mouse
- 2) Rotation : Rotate by the left/right blue controller and the central violate controller.
- 3) Size : Click the yellow controller and move the mouse



Dialogue to add the crown



When operate multiple crowns, they become grouped by pressing Ctrl + Crown or button to perform the same movement and rotation. And if you click again Ctrl + Crown or empty space, the grouping will be released.

4.2 Crown grouping

When simulate the multiple crowns, you can move and rotate them by grouping.



Select white button or Ctrl + Crown to set grouping.

(Grouped crown : Green / Degrouped crown : White)

The grouped crown can be simultaneously moved, rotated and scale adjusted.

Click the empty space while grouped to release the grouping.

4.3 Crown bridge

Crowns set as bridges follow the mouse point at the same time based on the crown located in the center of the crowns selected as the bridge upon initial entry. When you click the scan model, the crowns are fixed in the aligned position. After that, crowns set as bridges can be operated together by default.



Crown bridge

If you want to operate individually, press Alt key, and click the crown you want to disable, then the crown will be disabled and does not operate together. Pressing the disabled crown again enables only the clicked crown while all other crowns remain disabled. Clicking in the air or another crown group or pressing esc of the keyboard will enable crowns.



Crown bridge



Crown disabling

Pressing button enables the Grid in the screen. The size of the Grid can be designated at User Setting.



If you press **CROWN LOAD** button and export the Crown Virtual Setup data using another CAD program and import it from Digital Guide, you can load the crown designed in the corresponding location.



Apply Virtual Setup

4.4 Extraction function

This is a function to select/delete a specific part of the model data as a function for guide surgery after tooth extraction



Set the tooth extraction area

After tooth extraction



Cancel the tooth extraction – Return to the original model

5 Fixture simulation

5.1 Fixture simulation tool

This tool provides a fixture simulation function to determine the drilling position of the surgical guide.

The initial position of the fixture and sleeve is determined based on the crown position performed during the Anatomy Design stage.

This tool finds the position to implant the fixture on the real patient by moving and rotating additional fixtures on the 2/3D image.

When the position is moved after selecting the fixture, the sleeve is also moved according to the position of the fixture.



Fixture simulation start screen



2D Fixture Control UI

Fixture movement : Move the mouse after clicking the fixture

Fixture rotation : White controller

Fixture length : Blue controller (the length can be changed within the corresponding product family)

How to synchronize the axes of multiple fixtures

- If you double-click the reference fixture, the color changes to green. After that, if you double-click the rotation controller (white) of the target fixture, the axes will be synchronized.
- After clicking the axis synchronization button, the first fixture selected becomes the reference fixture.

Fixtures selected after the second time will be synchronized to the slope of the reference fixture. Fixture can be selected in both 2D section and 3D





Reference fixture of axis synchronization button : Green Select the synchronization fixture





: Shows the moving distance of the fixture



: Angle



ΗU

: Measure the angle using 4 points, such as the angle between adjacent teeth and fixtures

: Calculation of maximum/minimum/average values of HU (Hounsfield Unit) values within

a specific area



: Delete all measured values



Measurement and initialization



: Displays 2D image position on the 3D image



3D superposition of fixture's cross-sectional image



: Shows a safe area



Radial : Set a safe distance to the axis direction

Apical : Set a safe distance to the lower direction



: Shows an occlusal data



When the occlusal state is disabled, it is displayed as a matching state (Left), when the occlusal state is enabled, it is displayed as an occlusal state (Right).



: Fixture fine tuning



Translation : Travel distance per 1 time clicking the movement button

Rotation : Rotating amount per 1 time clicking the rotation button



Up/down/left/right movement controller (left), clockwise/counterclockwise rotation controller (right)

If you move the fixture while holding down the Ctrl key, a cross-shaped ruler based on the fixture is created, and you can move it finely since the ruler displays the travel distance (mm) of the fixture in the forward direction.



Fixture fine tuning using Ctrl key

You can change the section view in 5 steps between Implant Mode and Panorama Mode using the



buttons of Axial.





5.2 Fixture selection and customizing

This function supports custom features so that you can select our fixture products or register and use third-party's fixture information.



5.3 Sleeve selection and customizing

This function supports custom functions so that you can select our sleeve products or register and use third party's sleeve information.

※ In case of custom sleeve, only Non-Sleeve type is supported.



5.4 Anchor pin selection and customizing

When you click Add Anchor Pin button, the added anchor pin follows the mouse, and when you click on the desired location, the anchor pin will be implanted at that location.

This function supports a custom function so that you can select our anchor pin product or register and use other company's anchor pin information.



6 Surgical guide area setting/creation

6.1 Sleeve setting

This function sets the area for generating the surgical guide after setting the drilling position through fixture simulation. After enabling the area designation button, click the mouse to set the area.



Surgical Guide Creation Step

Select the sleeve to determine the inner diameter.

Inner diameter : 30 (Dentium Simple Kit) / 49 (Dentium Full Kit) / 54(Digital Guide kit 5.0)



Sleeve Combo Box / 30 -> 49 -> 54 in sequence

Determine the outer diameter using the sleeve outer diameter adjust peaker.



Adjust sleeve outer diameter. Default/Narrow/Wide

Determine the length using the sleeve length adjust peaker.



Adjust sleeve length. Default/Short/Long

Change the sleeve type with sleeve type button



Metal Sleeve type / Non-Sleeve type / Open Sleeve type / Non-Open Sleeve type

You can set the guide to be created on Offset from Sleeve and Guide Setting.

Offset From Sleeve 🔺			
Sleeve	Guide Setting		
Non Sleeve 0.02 mm Preview	Thickness 2.0 mm		
	Offeset From Teeth 0.1 mm		

Offset from Sleeve : Sets the offset value of inner diameter of sleeve hole

- Sleeve : Sets inner diameter offset of Metal Sleeve and Open Sleeve
- Non-Sleeve : Sets inner offset of Non-Sleeve and Non-Open Sleeve

Guide Setting : Sets the thickness and gap value of Guide

- Thickness : Surgical Guide Thickness
- Offset from Teeth : Gap between Tooth and Surgical



Thickness and Offset of Surgical Guide

6.2 Guide area setting

Set the insertion direction using the space bar or subtron.

The direction of the model data displayed on the screen is the insertion direction.

* Please decide carefully since the surgical guide undercut area is determined according

to the insertion direction.

If you press the space bar in the model data status as shown below, the undercut area will be wrongly set.



Wrong insertion direction

If you press the space bar as below after rotating the model data, a normal insertion direction will be determined.



Normal insertion direction



: Start to prepare the data to create Surgical Guide

If the black point follows to the mouse pointer, it means that the guide area is ready to be set.

Prepare to set Surgical Guide area - Black point

Set the Surgical Guide creation area through mouse click.

The point can be changed with the previous point through Ctrl+Z, and Ctrl+Y can return the point.



Set the surgical guide creation area



After setting the area, you can reset the area again by moving the control point.

Area reset

The first point is light blue, the last point created just before is yellow-green, and the point that the mouse over for correction excluding the first and last points is displayed in red.

When the point superimposes the first point, the size of the light blue point changes, and when you click it, a surgical guide will be created based on the set area.

In case of point setting error, select the point again adjacent to the previous area.

If there is an empty space on the path, there is a possibility of error.



Point setting error



Create Surgical Guide deliverable

The surgical guide deliverable is created as stl file and can be used during surgery by printing it out using a 3D printer.



Actual Surgical Guide Deliverable printed out using a 3D printer

Can delete user-created surgical guides and set guide areas.

: Deletes both the created guide and the guide area set by the user

: Selectively deletes the guide and guide area set by the user

Delete Surgical Guide				
Do you want to delete surgical guide only or do you want to delete the area line as well?				
Delete Guide	Delete All	Cancel		

Delete Guide : Deletes the created guide Delete All : Deletes both the created guide and the set guide area

6.3 Guide attachment

×

A guide is created by designating a guide area, and bar, window, and text can be attached to the created guide.



Bar : Creates a support bar. This bar is created by marking two points on the created guide.

Window : Creates a window. This window initially follows the mouse and is created at the corresponding location clicked on the guide.

Text : Generates text. If you enter the desired type and text, this

text initially follows the mouse and is created at the corresponding position clicked on the guide.

Apply : Bar, Window, and Text are actually applied to the

selected location.



Select the location of Bar, Window and Text



Applies Bar, Window and Text

6.4 Surgical guide output

Finally, if you press Guide Export \bullet after checking the surgical guide result, a warning window appears. After confirming the contents correctly, press the Ok button to set the STL storage path.



Warning for creation of Surgical Guide

Select a STL file to save		×
← → · ↑ 🖡 «	DigitalGuide > RainbowSS > data > sample > 1 v 😈 1 겸	색 🔎
구성 ▼ 새 폴더		i≣ - (?)
	▲ 이름 ·	수정한 날짜 유형
📙 3D 개체	DICOM	2019-05-21 오전 8:18 파일 폴더
📕 다운로드	🥏 temp	2019-05-08 오후 8:38 파일 폴더
🖪 동영상	2018-05-28_00001-015-LowerJaw_center_rotate.stl	2019-05-08 오후 8:38 Meshmix
👔 문서	2018-05-28_00001-015-LowerJaw_center_rotate_manifold.stl	2019-06-18 오전 9:04 Meshmix
- 바탄 하며	2018-05-28_00001-015-LowerJaw_center_rotate_manifold.stl_decimati	2019-06-18 오전 9:11 Meshmix
N 지	2018-05-28_00001-015-LowerJaw_subdivision_center_rotate.stl	2019-05-08 오후 8:38 Meshmix
N 연 N 유야	2018-05-28_00001-015-LowerJaw_subdivision_center_rotate_manifold.stl	2019-05-21 오전 8:18 Meshmix
로걸 니스크 (C:)		
🥪 로컬 디스크 (D:)		
🥪 새 볼륨 (F:)		
🥪 CT2_SW_exHDD		
🧼 저장소 공간 (l:)		
	✓ <	>
파일 이름(N):		~
파일 형식(T): (*.	stl)	~
▲ 폴더 숨기기		저장(S) 취소

Set the storage path of Surgical Guide
6.5 Scan jig merge model extraction

This function outputs the original data including the scan jig based on the location where the guide was created when ScanJig Export \bullet button is clicked. In addition, this function provides fixture position information to other programs in the steps after implanting the fixture (abutment/crown design, etc.).



• Scan jig name according to the fixture setting

	Fixture		Scan jig
Company name	Product family	Platform	Product name
Dentium	SimpleLine2	All	scjsi4865
	NrLine	All	gscji45
	NrLine-B		
	Others	All	Scji4565
Bright	TissueLevel	3.4	bisc3436ht

TissueLevel-B		
TissueLevel	3.8	bisc3838hl
TissueLevel-B		
TissueLevel	4.2	bisc4248ht
TissueLevel-B		
BoneLevel	All	Bih385090th
BoneLevel-B		

7 Report

This is a function that provides information such as fixture simulation images and fixture specifications necessary for surgery.

DIGITAL GUIDE Name John Smith Ag	e 80		_ 🗆 X
Implant Information			Report
Implant position(FDI)	26		Print Report
Company	Dentium		
Product	SuperLine2		Export Report
Model Name	FXS3607		
Platform(mm)	3.7		
Body / Apical(mm)	3.6		
Length(mm)	7		
Color	Yellow	-	
Safety Area Radial (mm) 1.5	_	
Safety Area Apical (mm	າ) 2.0		
<	s - <u>×</u> - <i>v</i> -	- •	> <u>*</u>

Report Screen

7.1 Report layout

- ① : Displays the hospital information
- ②: Displays the patient information
- ③ : Fixture position simulation capture screen on the model
- ④ : Displays all fixture information used in simulation
- ⑤ : Displays the fixture information used in simulation
- ⑥ : Fixture simulation capture screen
- ⑦ : User's comment box



Report layout - Entire summary information (left), detailed information by fixture (right)

8 E-mail transmission

General	Email Info					
User Setting	Send Guide By	Email				
Implant and Guide	Address(From)	dentium digital guide	@	gmail.com	gmail.com	~
Clinic Info	Password	•••••				
Email	Address(To)	jhpark2	0	gw.dentium.com	[Input]	~

Sets the e-mail address in the prescribed window.

Setting window – Email Tab : Can select E-mail address setting and sending

* Sender's e-mail address is only available in Gmail account (google)

- Send Guide By Email : Selects whether to send an email at the same time when exporting a guide

- Address(From) : Sender's e-mail address
- Password : Sender's e-mail password
- Address(To) : Receiver's e-mail address (* Other than Gmail is available)

* Need to change the sender's e-mail security level

Allow low-security apps from the link <u>https://myaccount.google.com/lesssecureapps</u>: 'Please change it to 'Enable'.



8.1 E-mail transmission of Surgical Guide STL File

This is the function to send the completed guide data to a specific email address.

After creating the guide, click the button corresponding to Located at the bottom of the program to enter the Send E-Mail pop-up menu.



Send E-Mail popup window

Click	🖂 Email	E button	to enter the	receiver's	email addı	ress and	click	Send
button.	The Surgical	Guide STL file	e will be sent	to the ema	ail address	you ente	ered.	

In addition, if the sending function is enabled by selecting Send Guide By Email in the setting window, a pop-up window for entering the receiver's email address automatically appears when the guide is saved after the guide is created in the Surgical Guide step, and when Send



E-mail sending window automatically pops up after completing the guide export

8.2 Request the Dentium Milling Center (rainbow Digital Center) to print the surgical guide

model

This is a function to send STL file and request Dentium Milling Center to print the completed guide data.

Only guides created with the settings below can request the milling center to print.

* Conditions to requesting print Surgical Guide Model Metal/non sleeve offset: 0.02 Offset From Teeth: 0.15 or 0.2

Click the button corresponding to located at the bottom of the program to enter the Send E-Mail pop-up window menu.



Send E-mail pop-up window



button to prepare the Surgical Guide Model Print Request

	nation
Clinic Name/Factory	미소가득치과
Phone Number	070-7098-6927
Address	경기 수원시 영통구 항룡대로 256번길 76
Patient Info	rmation
Name	라창수 / 54 / M
Date of Surgery	ууууMMdd
Order Inforn	nation
The Number Of Hole	3
Drilling Location	Tooth Number And Sleeve Size (simple/full/5.0 KIT)
	17 Full KIT / metal-sleeve
	37 b 5.0 KIT / metal-sleeve
Requiremen	t
Requiremen	t

Surgical Guide Model Print Request

Clinic Information : Clinic information set in the setting window is automatically entered as default.

- Clinic Name/Factory : Name of dental clinic or dental laboratory
- Phone Number : Phone number
- Address : Shipping address information

Patient Information : Patient information is automatically entered as default. Be sure to enter the scheduled surgery date in accordance with the format.

- Name : Patient's name / age / gender
- Date of Surgery : Expected date of surgery (Format: yyyyMMdd)

Order Information : Drilling position and sleeve information set through fixture simulation are automatically entered.

- The Number of Hole : Number of Holes
- Drilling Location : Surgical location (Implant tooth number and sleeve size)

Requirement : Enter the requirement when printing.

Click button when the surgical guide model output request form has been completed.

The PDF file of the surgical guide model output request and the guide STL file are sent to the milling center.



Transmit Surgical guide model output request in PDF file and STL file to the milling center

9 Tools

9.1 Image Operating Tools

This is a tool that allows you to adjust the transparency of objects displayed on the screen.



DICOM : Adjusts the degree of density expression of CT data.

MAXILLARY : Adjusts the transparency of the maxillary model data.

MANDIBLE : Adjusts the transparency of the mandible model data.

NERVE : Adjusts the transparency of the neural tube.

FIXTURE : Adjusts the transparency of the fixture.

SLEEVE : Adjusts the transparency of the sleeve.

CROWN : Adjusts the transparency of the crown (prosthesis).

ANCHOR PIN : Adjusts the transparency of the anchor pin.

STL : Adjusts the transparency of model data.

SURGICAL GUIDE : Adjusts the transparency of the surgical guide.

FIXTURE AXIS : Adjusts the transparency of the fixture's center axis.

CYLINDER : Adjusts the transparency of the cylinder attached to the guide for drilling.

MAXILLARY(M) : Adjusts the transparency of the maxillary marker data.

MANDIBLE(M) : Adjusts the transparency of the mandibular marker data.

DRILL CYLINDER : Adjusts the transparency of the hole's inner diameter (cylinder) for drilling.

(Each slider only shows the content that corresponds to the operation step.)

9.2 Data Matching Tool



9.3 Neural Tube Definition Tool



9.4 Crown design tool



9.5 Implant planning tool



: Enables the implant select window

- : Deletes all implants
- : Deletes selected implant



X

: Adds anchor pin

🦉 : Synchronizes the fixture tilt

9.6 Surgical Guide Creation Tool

6. Surgical Guide	: Enables guide area designation
+ X ×	: Deletes the entire guide
Sleeve	: Deletes both the creation guide and the guide area
Dentium ~ 1 49 ~	: Sets the insertion direction
Q 4.9	Sleeve : Changes the currently selected sleeve information
Non Open	Non/Open : Designates Non-Sleeve/Open-Sleeve
Offset From Sleeve	Offset From Sleeve
Image: 0.08 mm Non Sleeve Image: 0.02 mm	- Sleeve : Sets inner diameter thickness offset of Metal Sleeve and Open Sleeve
Preview	- Non-Sleeve : Sets inner diameter thickness offset of Non-Sleeve
Guide Setting	Guide Setting
2.0 mm Offeset From Teeth	- Thickness : Sets Guide thickness
0.1 mm	- Offset From Teeth : Sets the offset between the scan model and
	the guide
Bar : Ad	ds bar



9.8 Changing the size of the sectional image window





Window size enlarge mode

9.9 Layout change and initialization

Click the title bar of each view to move. Can adjust the size holding right bottom.





Layout change



: Can change to initial layout state using reset button

Reset to initial state of layout

9.10 Undo / Redo

You can cancel or redo the work through button located at the bottom left of the program and Ctrl + Z, Ctrl + Y.

Application work: Sets positions of matching model / neural tube / crown / fixture and the guide area

9.11 Automatic Save

After performing the key functions, the project status is automatically saved.

You can prevent loss of surgical information due to unexpected program termination, etc.

D	GITAL GUIDE	Name John Smith	Age 80		-		×
11.	Patient list	Q +	Birth Date Description		1. Add P	'atient	
R 0	이 김경철		New Project +	Step.02			
			Load Project 2021. 03. 03 1 2021. 01. 13 2021. 01. 13 16:42:35 1	17 16 15 14 13 12 11 21 22 23 24 10 11 10 <t< td=""><td>25 26 000 35 36</td><td>2/ () () () () () () () () () ()</td><td></td></t<>	25 26 000 35 36	2/ () () () () () () () () () ()	
				Continue	2021.03.03	07:21	PM
₽				<u> </u>	$\left \right>$		Ŀ

Auto Save: Mark as "Save Time_A"

Manual save: Mark "Save time" (Manual save: Save project using button)

Time for Auto Save

- 1 : Switch step
- ②: Data matching
- ③: Create neural tube
- ④ : Perform tooth extraction
- (5) : Create Guide

9.12 Project management No.

When saving a project manually/automatically, a management number will be automatically created.

You can check the saving history of the project.

A new management number is created by adding the string "_maximum value among the same hierarchy" to the existing management number of the loaded project.



Automatic creation structure of Project Management

No.

 \rightarrow Loaded project management number _ maximum

value among the same hierarchy

9.13 Model Viewport Rotation

You can rotate the model data by clicking the Front / Rear / Up / Down / Left / Right buttons.





10 Configuration

You can change/save initial values of user information (hospital name, address, phone number, etc.) and variable data used in the program. After saving the environment settings, the program must be restarted to apply the set values.

10.1 General

About : Displays software name/version

User Interface Languages : Selects the language to be used (Korean / English)

Project Sharing : Selects whether to use the sharing function and sets the sharing folder path

Update : Selects whether to use the automatic update function

Default Save Path : Sets the default save paths of guides, scan jigs, and reports

Settings			×
General	General		
User Setting	About	Digital Guide Software Version : 1.1.0	
Implant and Guide		Copyright © 2019. Dentium Co., Ltd. all rights reserved	
Clinic Info	User Interface Languages	English	
Email	Project Sharing	V Network sharing folder path	
		F:/GuideData Browse	
	Update	Use Auto update	
	Default Save Path	Default Save folder path	
		Browse	
Initialize	Sa	Cancel	

General Setting

10.2 User Setting

DICOM Cropping : Sets DICOM cropping function

Scan Jig : Selects whether to automatically extract the scan jig merge model when printing the

guide

Grid Unit Setting : Sets the grid spacing of Anatomy Design stage

Rendering Quality : Sets the rendering quality

Settings					×
General	User Setting				
User Setting	DICOM Cropping	Initial DICC	OM Cropping		
Implant and Guide	Scan Jig	Export Sca	n Jig With Original STI	L	
Clinic Info	Grid Unit Setting		1	0 mm	
Email	Rendering Quality	High	⊖ Middle	⊖ Low	
Initialize		Save	Cancel		

User Setting

10.3 Implant and Guide

Implant Planning Settings

Implant Safety Zone - Radial Distance : Sets the safety distance in the radial direction of the fixture

Implant Safety Zone - Apical Distance : Sets the safety distance toward the bottom of the fixture

Fine Tuning Interval - Translation : Sets the fixture fine tuning shift value

Fine Tuning Interval – Rotation : Sets the rotation value of the fixture fine tuning.

Surgical Guide Settings

Guide Thickness : Surgical guide thickness

Offset From Teeth To Guide : Gap between tooth and guide

Offset From Sleeve To Guide : Gap between guide and sleeve

Offset From Non Sleeve To Guide : Gap between guide and non-sleeve

Settings				×
General	Implant And Gui	de		
User Setting	🗑 Implant Planning Sett	tings		
Implant and Guide	Implant Safety Zone	Radial Distance ———	1.5	
Clinic Info		Apical Distance ———	2.0	
	Fine Tunning Interval	Translation (mm) —	0.5	
Email		Rotation (°) —	0.5	
	Surgical Guide Setting	gs		
	Guide Setting	Guide Thickness 2.0	Offset From Teeth To Guide	0.15
	Offset From Sleeve	Offset From Sleeve To Guide	ف¢ 0.02 mm	
		Offset From Non Sleeve To Guide	e 🔅 0.02 mm	
Initialize		Save Cancel		

Implant and Guide Setting

10.4 Clinic Info

Clinic Name : Sets the hospital name

Dentist : Sets the doctor's name

Phone Number : Sets the phone No. of the hospital

Address : Sets the address of the hospital

Settings			×
General	Clinic Info		
User Setting	Clinic Name	Dentium	
Implant and Guide	Dentist	Dr. Park	
Clinic Info	Phone Number	070-7098-6927	
Email	Address	76, Changnyong-daero 256 beon-gil, Yeongtong-gu, Suwon-si, Gyeonggi-do	
Initialize		Save Cancel	

Clinic Info Setting

10.5 E-mail

Send Guide By Email : Selects whether to send E-mail at the same time when exporting Guide

Address(From) : Enter the sender's E-mail address

Password : Sets the password

Address(To) : Enter the receiver's E-mail address

Settings						×
General	Email Info					
User Setting	Send Guide By En	nail				
Implant and Guide	Address(From)	From	@	gmail.com	gmail.com	~
Clinic Info	Password	•••••				
Email	Address(To)	То	@	gmail.com	gmail.com	~
Initialize		Save	Cancel			

Email Setting

Neural tube and fixture simulation and surgical guide creation must be carried out by specialists with sufficient experience and expertise.

The structure, location, and content may not be same as actual ones and no results are guaranteed.

Digital Guide Manual





V FAQ

1. When starting the program, a system error 'Can't proceed with code execution due to no ~.dll' appears.



Default setting necessary for using the program is necessary. See the warning message and install the necessary items referring to the following.

- ~120.dll -> Install redistribution package of visual studio 2013 (x86, x64) : https://www.microsoft.com/ko-kr/download/details.aspx?id=40784
- ~140.dll -> Install redistribution package of visual studio 2015 (x86, x64) : https://www.microsoft.com/ko-kr/download/details.aspx?id=48145
- - d3d~.dll -> Install directX:

https://www.microsoft.com/ko-kr/download/details.aspx?id=35

2. A memory error window occurs while using the program.



There is not enough capacity remained on the hard disk. Please secure the capacity.

3. When starting the program, a license error window appears.



- Check if the dongle key is properly inserted.
- If the license error still occurs even though the dongle key is inserted, insert it into another USB pod.
- 4. When starting the program, the license input window appears.

License		
	This wizard helps you to license your product.	
	 Activate product 	
	Click here if you have the activation code.	
	Verification Code	Send This code to Dentium
	Activation Code	
	Activation Period (Days)	
	Next Cancel	

- The license has not been authenticated or the license period has expired. Please contact Dentium to renew your license.



5. The cross-section window disappears.

If the cross-section window is not visible as above, click Reset Layout.



6. Automatic matching fails



• Limitations on the automatic matching function

1. When CT image and scan model data are different each other

- 2. Patients with edentulous jaw or if the number of teeth is less than 3
- 3. When there is a lot of noise in the CT image, or the image is cut (partial)
- 4. Automatic matching function is not supported when using graphic cards other than NVIDIA graphic cards

It may fail in other cases. If it fails, please use Point Matching or Manual Matching.

DIGITAL GUIDE Name Dentium Software **Age** 21 × 2. Scan Alignment Lower Upper + x x AUTO D T Alignment Point Manual DIGITAL GUIDE Name Dentium Software Age 21 × Lower Upper 2. Scan Alignment + x × AUTO DT Alignment Point Manual

7. Point matching is distorted

* When setting points, it is advantageous for improving the matching precision to set 3

___ ₩

3

points as far as possible.

8. When switching to Anatomy Design or Implant Planning, the following warning window appears.

Warning	
	Data Alignment not completed.
	Ok

Return to Scan Alignment to complete the matching.

9. When switching steps in the Anatomy Design or Implant Planning tab, the following warning window appears.



Can move the step after completing the arrangement for the new crown.

If the crown is not visible, put the cursor over the scan model to see the crown following the mouse.

10. When creating a guide, the following warning window appears.



- Occurs when the guide creation area is too narrow or there is a hole or twisted area in the creation area.
- Increase the guide area and designate the guide area to avoid holes and tears.
- If the hole or tear is too severe, you will need to re-scan.

11. Sleeves, support bars, etc. are not attached to the guide.

- An error may occur if adjacent cylinders are stuck to completely parallel lines. Move or rotate the position very finely in the Implant Planning step. (Shift + arrow keys: fine movement, Shift + Alt + arrow keys: fine rotation)
- Delete the vaccine or antivirus program from your PC or use the program after exit.
- The vaccine and anti-virus programs may limit the overall function of the program.

12. The shape of the guide created is strange.

- Check the undercut direction.
- Check if there are any holes or torn areas in the model in the creation area.
- If the hole or tear is severe, you will need to re-scan.

13. The lower part of the cylinder is not cut properly.



Lower cutting error

Normal



Create the guide by adjusting the outer diameter and height of the cylinder.



Designate the guide area sufficiently to cover the cylinder. Designate the guide area as wide as possible even when the scan model is short compared to the sleeve position.

If the lower part of the cylinder is not cut even with the above measures, cut it using a window.

14. I want to add or change the implant crown/fixture during surgical guide planning.

- After moving the Patient list, press the Implant button to move to the tooth selection window without selecting another patient.

DIGITAL GUIDE	Name John Smith Age 20	_ 🗆 ×
11. 19		1. Add Patient
R	Select Tooth Number	
	17 16 15 14 13 12 11 21 22 23 24 25 26 27	
	47 46 45 44 43 42 41 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	
	Next \rightarrow	
¢		

- Click the + button in the upper right corner of the Anatomy Design or Implant Planning step to display the tooth select window.



- When adding a tooth in a direction that is not matched in the Anatomy Design or Implant Planning step, please note that the direction of the tooth that is placed as default may be different from the direction of the scan model.
15. E-mail transmission / request milling center to print fails

- Check that the email address and password set in the settings are correct.
- Sender's e-mail address is available only with Gmail account (google).

Settings								×
General	Email Info							
User Setting	Send Guide By E	nail						
Implant and Guide	Address(From)	From		@	gmail.com	gmail.com	~	
Clinic Info	Password	•••••						
Email	Address(To)	То		@	gmail.com	gmail.com	~	
Initialize		Save	Cancel					

- The sender's e-mail security level needs to be changed.

Allow low-security apps at the link <u>https://myaccount.google.com/lesssecureapps</u>: Please change it to 'Enable'.



Digital Guide Manual



Dentium Co., Ltd. (ICT Branch) (16229) 76, Changnyong-daero 256beon-gil, Yeongtong-gu, Suwon-si, Gyeonggi-do, Republic of Korea www.dentium.co.kr

Tel. 070-7098-4027, 6909 Fax. 031-281-5561